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REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL ADDENDUM 
PURCHASING OFFICE 

CITY OF AUSTIN, TEXAS 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL: RMJ0302 ADDENDUM NO.  
DATE OF ADDENDUM: August 20, 2015 

 
This addendum is to incorporate the following: 
 
Q1. In regards to the “estimated annual quantities” listed on the price sheet of Section 0705, can you verify 

that the focus group quantities are in reference to number of participants, and not number of groups? 
 
A1. The quantities referenced are number of participants. 
 
Q2. Section 0400 item 3 (FACTA COMPLIANCE) states that “Offerors submitting offers” must provide a 

signed affidavit certifying FACTA compliance.  Does this affidavit need to be signed and notarized with 
the bid submission, or can we have the affidavit notarized in a different state or wait to produce a 
notarized affidavit if awarded the contract?  (We have no staff residing in Texas at this time – so 
obtaining a notarized signature in Texas is problematic for us.)? 

A2. The form needs to be signed after contract award.  Yes, it can be signed and notarized in the state that you 
are from, just cross out in the form where it states the State of Texas and put your state.  

 
Q3. Section 0400 item 10.A (WORKFORCE SECURITY CLEARANCE AND IDENTIFICATION) specifies a 

requirement to “produce a certified criminal background check with fingerprinting for all persons 
working on the contract, including all Contractor, Subcontractor, and Supplier personnel.”  Item C in 
this section mentions completing this “at least 30 days prior to any onsite work commencement.”  Are 
the criminal background checks only required for Contractor personnel who will be working/visiting 
“onsite” – or are background checks required for all Contractor personnel, regardless of location?  
Would this include all phone interviewers, programmers, and other personnel who will never be 
onsite as part of the project? 

 
A3. This requirement applies to all persons performing on the contract regardless of location.       

Q4. In the PRICE PROPOSAL SHEET, should the dollar amounts in the “EXTENDED PRICE” column reflect the 
total price of the line item or the cost per “UNIT OF MEASURE”?  For example, for Project 1, should we 
note the cost per interview (400 at $___ per interview, listing the cost per interview in the “EXTENDED 
PRICE” column), or the total project cost for Project 1 (400*$ per interview = EXTENDED PRICE)?  I’m 
assuming it’s the latter (total project cost) – but I’ve had similar instances where “cost per interview” 
was the desired input? 

A4.  This amount should reflect the total project cost. 
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Q5. There are several aspects of the proposal that (understandably) state or imply a preference for vendor 
presence in Austin or the State of Texas.  Will vendors with no current presence in Texas be considered 
for this contract, or is there indeed a strong preference for a local or in-state firm for this contract?  

A5.   Local presence is not a mandatory requirement.  It is a preference worth a set amount of evaluation points. 
 
Q6. Section 0600 item 1.F (Personnel) asks the bidder to “State the primary work assigned to each person 

and the percentage of time each person will devote to this work.”  Does the “percentage of time” 
requested here refer to the percentage of the total time for a particular task that each individual will 
account for (e.g., 50% of questionnaire development will be completed by person A; and 50% of 
questionnaire development will be completed by person B), or is this asking us to estimate the 
percentage of an individual’s total work time that will be devoted to work on this project (e.g., Person 
A will spend 50% of their work hours working on Austin Energy project 1.)? 

 
A6. The work hours are based on each project. 

Q7. For the telephone survey projects i – iv, will there be specific quotas for Landline versus Cell Phone 
interviews?  

 
 

A7. No, AE will provide the call list. 

Q8. Please confirm that for the customer satisfaction telephone survey projects i and ii, that call sample will 
not be provided by Austin Energy? 

 
A8. A call sample will not be provided by AE for the projects detailed in i. and ii. 
 
Q9. For the telephone survey projects i – iv and the e-survey projects v – vi, will there be Spanish-language 

quotas (and translation costs), or should we assume for the purposes of these estimates that all six of 
these hypothetical projects will be conducted in English only? 

 
A9. For some projects, Spanish surveys are needed. 
 
Q10. For the focus groups and online panels, projects vii – x, should we assume that customer lists with 

phone numbers (and email address when available) be provided for recruiting these projects? 

A10. Yes. 
 
Q11. For the online panel projects ix – x, are these intended to be qualitative online panels facilitated by an 

online moderator over a three-month period (as opposed to panels used for online surveys)?  
 
A11. No moderator will be needed.  Consider these panels for online surveys. 
 
Q12. In the Scope of Work (0500), points 3.A.2.q and 3.B.2.p mention that each study shall consist of up to 3 oral 

presentations of the report.  Can you provide additional information about these presentations?  Are these 
different from the presentations identified in the three points preceding (i.e. Creation of preliminary report 
and presentation, Re-write of report and presentation and Delivery of final report and presentation)?  To 
whom would the presentations be given?  Do they typically involve walking-through the report findings, or 
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would this involve creating custom presentations in addition to the report?  Are these presentations in-
person or is via an online meeting acceptable? 

 
A12. Presentations walk through the results.  Online meeting can be acceptable if available by AE. 
 
Q13. In the Scope of Work (0500), point 5.C.2 indicates “The Contractor shall have the personnel on staff to 

conduct AE surveys in Spanish, if required.”  Do you also require a bi-lingual moderator for focus groups, 
or should we assume focus groups are conducted in English? 

 
A13. For some projects, Spanish is necessary. 
 
Q14. On the pricing proposal section0600 C/0705), should our extended price for each example project (i. – 

xii.) include a report and oral presentation? 
 
A14. Yes, include all associated costs. 
 
Q15.  If the contractor is outside Austin, are we correct in assuming costs that require in-person work should 

include travel (i.e. for conducting intercepts, moderating, or post-report presentations)?  
 
A15.  Yes, include all associated costs. 
 
Q16.  Do you want any advanced analytics priced for any of these example project scenarios? 
 
A16.  Yes, include these costs. 
 
Q17.  For the pricing proposal (0600 Section C.vii - x), will Austin Energy/City of Austin provide the sample to 

be used to recruit for the focus groups and online panels, or would the contractor need to purchase a list 
to recruit these participants? 

 
A17.  AE will provide list. 
 
Q18.  Can you elaborate on your online panel methodology (0600 Section C ix and x)?  What activities (i.e. 

web surveys, discussion boards, etc.) do you typically ask these panelists to participate in?  For the price 
proposal, should these two items simply cover recruitment/engagement activities for this online panel, 
or should we include any research activities, i.e. deploying quick web surveys, conducting online 
discussion boards, etc. 

 
A18.  Please include any research activities, i.e. deploying quick web surveys, conducting online discussion 

boards, etc. 
 
Q19.  For the in-person Service Center Intercept Surveys (0600 C xi and xii), do you typically conduct these 

paper/pencil or do you use tablets to enter responses? 
 

A19.  They can be either. 
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Q20.  If paper/pencil, will the contractor be responsible for data entry?  If tablets are used, should we plan 
on programming the survey? 

 
A20.  Yes, for both questions. 
 
Q21. Do you typically offer incentives to in-person intercept respondents?  If so, what is the typical 

incentive that is offered?  Should the cost of those incentives be included in the price proposal? 
 
A21.  No incentives are offered or planned to be offered. 
 
Q22.  Professional Liability Insurance: The Contractor shall provide coverage, at a minimum  

limit of $1,000,000 per claim, to pay on behalf of the assured all sums which the assured  
shall become legally obligated to pay as damages by reason of any negligent act, error, or  
omission arising out of the performance of professional services under this Agreement.  
Would AE consider eliminating this requirement? Or allowing an exception?  
 

A22.  Any exceptions will be reviewed with the proposal.  The City reserves the right to reject or accept. 
 
Q23.  Are background checks required for printers, printing services and other such vendors?   
 
A23.  Yes, security clearance is required for all persons handling sensitive customer data. 
 
Q24.  Price Proposal: Should we assume that “call sample not provided,” means this will be a general 

population telephone survey conducted among a random selection of local phone numbers (RDD)?  
 
A24.  Yes, where sample is not provided these would be RDD general population, random selection. 
 
Q25.  Presently it is necessary to call cell phones to achieve a representative sample for general population 

(RDD) surveys. This is a more expensive undertaking than just calling landlines. So that bidders prices 
can be fairly compared, can you tell us what percentage of surveys you expect to be completed among 
cell phones? We suggest using the current industry standard of 50% cell phones, 50% landlines? 

 
A25.  We do not have quotas for cell phone and landline survey completes. 
 
Q26.  Scope of work A. 2. f) Data collection at least 400 surveys:  The RFP reads that each of the eight types 

of research to be conducted will have an “n” or a sample size of 400.  The “Price Proposal Sheet” 
appears to indicate an “n” under the heading “ESTIMATED ANNUAL QUANTITY”. 
Can you confirm that this column is the “n” for each type of data collection to be priced and not the 
total number of estimated surveys each year?  
 

A26.  Responses should be based on N being priced. 
 
Q27.  Scope of Work 3. A. 2) Each quantitative study shall consist of the following steps: q) Oral 

Presentation of report (up to 3 presentations):  Since the solicitation says the study “shall contain” “up 
to three presentations”, we assume that each individual price provided the “Price Proposal Sheet” must 
include the amount for these presentations.  Is this correct? 

A27.  Yes. 
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Q28.  Can we assume all presentations can take place on one day?  
 
A28.  No. 
 
Q29.  Scope of Work 5. B. 2) … Additionally, interviews and all staff utilizing customer data will participate in 

FACTA training. Documentation of FACTA training will be required.  Proposal Format D. …FACTA training for 
employees handling customer data.   The two statements above may be interpreted as conflicting. Can you 
clarify whether FACTA training is required for interviewers and focus group recruiters who “utilize” 
customer data” by contacting customers by name at the number listed in the contact file provided by 
Austin Energy but do not strictly speaking “handle” the data? 

 
A29.  Anyone who collects our customer data, which gives access, should take FACTA Training to understand 

how to safeguard the data. 
 
Q30.  In-person interviewers such as those who intercept customers at service centers should not require 

FACTA training since they are not using customer data. Is this correct? 
 
A30.  Anyone who has access to customer data regardless who provides the information (e.g., directly from 

customer) should have the FACTA Training to understand how to safeguard the data. 
 
Q31.  Expectations on report format and substance can have a significant impact on the time it takes to 

prepare a report. Can AE provide a sample focus group and quantitative report to provide guidance for 
bidders?  

 
A31. No, we cannot provide.  Please assume that Word and PowerPoint will be used for reports and 

presentations. 
 
Q32.  Can you explain how AE wants information on the percentage of projects conducted by businesses in 

Austin? We suggest providing an approximate percentage for each of the thirteen research projects on 
the PRICE PROPOSAL SHEET? 

 
A32.  Please follow Price Proposal Sheet. 
 
Q33.  When do you expect this contract to begin? 
 
A33.  Fall 2015. 
 
Q34.  Section 0400 Insurance Requirements: Do bidders need to provide proof of insurance in their 

proposal? 
 
 
A34.  No. 
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Q35.  Section 0400 FACTA Compliance & Section 0500 Personnel Requirements:  
a. What type of data is considered under the FACTA requirement? Will the databases for study include 

this type of data? 
 
A35a.  Financial information, social security number, credit reports, etc.  Yes. 
 

b.  Do only those individuals in a company who have access to databases provided for research need to 
be FACTA trained? e.g. programmers, research analyst, senior account manager? 

 
A35b.  Yes. 
 
Q36.  Section 0500 Scope of Work: For study materials (focus group screeners, questionnaires, etc.) will 

AE/COA be identified as the sponsor of the research? 
 
A36.  Yes. 
 
Q37.  Will telephone interviewing be done only in English, or will Spanish-language interviews be required? 
 
A37.  Yes, Spanish will be required as needed for the project. 
 
Q38.  Prior contracts for the City of Austin have specified that vendors/contractors must guarantee that all 

personnel working under the contract are paid the City’s minimum hourly living wage.  Is this a 
requirement for this contract? 

 
A38.  No. 
 
Q39.  In reference to section 0600: Several example studies are mentioned.  Is there an estimated 

qualifying incidence for each of these studies (that is the percent of people who will qualify to 
participate)? 

 
A39.  Qualifying participants would equal 100% as all projects are based on specific customer groups or types. 
 
Q40.  Our HQ is located in the Dallas area and not Austin.  However, we will be using Austin based staff for 

our interviewing as much as possible. I understand that 10 points in the decision will be awarded based 
on an Austin presence. Will we be awarded some points for using local staff? 

 
A40.  The local presence points are based on physical location.  If you have a branch office that meets the 

criteria then yes, if not then no. 
 
Q41.  Section 0900 No Goals Form: If no services will be subcontracted, only facility rental, do we need to 

submit SMBR paperwork? Does facility rental for focus groups count toward local presence? 
 
A41.  Facility rental may be considered a subcontract that may count for local business presence points.  Refer 

to Section 0900 for instructions. 
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Q42.  Prior contracts for the City of Austin have specified that vendors/contractors must offer health 
insurance to all employees working under the contract. Is this a requirement for this contract? 

 
A42.  No. 
 
Q43.  The RFP mentions the need for a call center. Although we do not have our own call center, we have 

specific call center companies that we partner with on our projects.   To be selected as a partner for our 
research, our vendors are screened and must meet certain high level quality standards.  If they do not 
pass our quality hurdle, they will not be selected.   If there is an Austin based telephone center that 
meets these qualifications, we will pursue partnering with them.  If there is not an Austin based call 
center, we may need to utilize other vendors.  Will this be acceptable to Austin Energy? 

 
A43.  No, having a call center as part of your organization is a minimum requirement.  
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All other terms and conditions remain the same. 
 
 
BY THE SIGNATURES affixed below, this Addendum is hereby incorporated and made a part of the above-referenced 
Solicitation. 
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APPROVED BY:           
         
                                       
   Raymundo Moncada Jr., Senior Buyer Specialist Corporate 
   Purchasing Office, 512-322-6594 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGED BY: 
 
_________________________         ______________________________         _________ 
  SUPPLIER   AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE  DATE 
 
RETURN ONE (1) COPY OF THIS ADDENDUM TO THE PURCHASING OFFICE, CITY OF AUSTIN, PRIOR TO 
PROPOSAL CLOSING OR WITH YOUR SEALED PROPOSAL. FAILURE TO DO SO MAY CONSTITUE GROUNDS 
FOR REJECTION OF YOUR OFFER.  


	Raymundo Moncada Jr., Senior Buyer Specialist Corporate

